ORIGINAL

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT*

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY
MASTER-IN-EQUITY

Mikell R. Scarborough, Judge

Case No. 2012-211963

William C Mitchell,

Appellant,

v.

James T. Helwig,

Respondent.

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

William C. Mitchell. Pro se
9452 Koester Road
Ladson, S C 29456
(843) 797-7538

RECEIVED
JUN 05 2013

SC Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Appellant Mitchell filed a civil action against Respondent Helwig on July 9, 2010, asserting five separate causes of action against Respondent Helwig: civil conspiracy; tortious interference with a contract; intentional interference with business expectancy; malicious prosecution; and abuse of process. (Comp. 48-54; R pp 44-46).

On August 5, 2010, Respondent Helwig filed a Motion to Dismiss and/or in the alternate to convert to Summary Judgment, with the court. The matter was heard on February 22, 2011, by the Honorable Deada L. Jefferson, Ninth Judicial Circuit, and an Order was filed on April 8, 2011, dismissing all causes of action asserted, based on the statute of limitation, except for the malicious prosecution and abuse of process claims. Based on the evidence before the court, the court ruled, that there was a genuine issue of a material fact in dispute as to when Appellant Mitchell received notice of the dismissal in the criminal case, and therefore it was a question for the jury as to when the statute of limitation began to run. (Comp. R P. 75.76.77,78) (Rp. 14; Order-notes 3) (R pp. 15; 2-3)

On June 23, 2011 Respondent Helwig, filed a separate Motion for Summary Judgment on the remaining claims of malicious prosecution and abuse of process, bases on the same set of facts and circumstances that was previously heard by Judge Jefferson at the hearing on February 22, 2011. A hearing was held on December 12, 2011, by the Master-in Equity and the same set of facts and circumstances that were heard by Judge Jefferson were argued by the Respondent Helwig's. No new facts, circumstances or evidence were presented by the Respondent Helwig.

Master-In Equity ruled that there was no genuine issue of a material fact in dispute and dismissed the remaining malicious prosecution and abuse of process claims based on the statute of limitation. The Order was signed December 29, 2011 (R. p. 28)and was filed with the clerk of court on January 6, 2012. Appellant received notice of same on January 14,2012.

Appellant file a Motion for Reconsideration pursuant to Rule 59(e), on January 18,2012. This Motion was denied and an order was filed with clerk of court on May 1, 2012. Appellant received notice of this order on May 3,2012.

Appellant served Respondent with Notice of Appeal on May 10,2012 and filed Notice of Appeal on May 14,2012.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

As alleged in the Appellant's Complaint, in April 2001, Respondent Helwig contacted Appellant about constructing a dock at a property located at 3088 Pignattle Cresent, Mt. Pleasant, S. C., property Respondent Helwig had recently purchased. On April 23, 2001, Respondent Helwig signed a contract agreeing to pay Forty Thousand Five Hundred Dollars to the Appellant for the construction of a dock, to be build after respondent, (who was living in New Jersey at the time) moved to Mt Pleasant, South Carolina. Along with the signing of the contract, the Respondent sent a check to the Appellant for Thirteen Thousand Five Hundred Dollars as a payment under the terms of the contract. Sometime (around the first of June, 2001), after the forming of the contract, the Appellant had material delivered to Respondent Helwig's property in Mt. Pleasant. Respondent Helwig subsequently sent another check per the terms of the contract, to the Appellant in the amount of Thirteen Thousand Five Hundred dollars. At this point in time the Appellant also had ongoing contracts with defendants Michael and Elizabeth Masiowski to construct docks at two separate locations for an alleged total price of Fifty Eight Thousand Five Hundred Dollars. The Complaint further alleges that while working for the Masiowski's, the Appellant and Defendant Masiowski had discussions related to the Masiowski' s, buying into the Appellant's dock construction business. Between mid-July and August 5, 2001, the Appellant alleges he discovered that while the Appellant was out of town that Defendant Masiowski"s had hired his entire work crew and formed their own new dock construction company. According to the Complaint, the Respondent Helwig and the Masiowski's conspired with one another to

breach their respective contracts with the Appellant to construct docks at the Defendants properties. According to the Complaint the Respondent Helwig and Defendant Masiowski both, together at the same time and same location, the Defendant's presented the Plaintiff with a letter on August 6, 2001, terminating their respective contracts with the Appellant and demanding a return of all monies paid on of the contact.

According to the Complaint, on December 12, 2001, the Appellant was arrested on a warrant for Obtaining Money By False Pretenses. The warrant was signed by Respondent Helwig. According to the Appellant's allegation, he believed the Defendants pressured the criminal action against him because he refused to give in to their threats, intimidations and did not comply with the demands of the Defendant's to refund all monies paid on the contracts with The Appellant.

According to the Complaint and the deposition and affidavit in evidence as furnished by Appellant's defense Attorney Phillip Middleton, the Appellant was first notified by his defense attorney in early 2008 that the above mentioned criminal matter had been dismissed.

(R. p. 75,76,77,78).

The circumstances at the time made it very difficult, impractical and almost impossible, for Appellant Mitchell to have made and inquiry at the clerk of court's office.

The Appellant Mitchell further alleges that at that point in time (in early 2008); and at the instructions of his defense attorney Middleton, that he then first obtained a copy of the dismissal from the Charleston County Clerk of Court.

The Appellant filed suit against the defendant's on July 9,2010, asserting five separate causes of action against the Defendants: Civil Conspiracy; Tortuous Interference With a Contract; Intentional Interference With a Business Expectancy; Malicious Prosecution; and Abuse of Process.

The Defendants each filed Motions to Dismiss with prejudice pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6) and alternative request to convert to Summary Judgment, based on the grounds that the applicable statute of limitations bars each and every cause of action asserted by the Appellant's Complaint against the Defendants. S.C. Code Ann. 15-3-510, 15-3-530

On February 22,2011, a hearing was held by the Circuit Court Judge, the Honorable Deadra L. Jefferson, on the Respondent Helwiag's Motion to Dismiss under Rule 12(b)(6) or to convert to Summary Judgment.

Judge Jefferson ruled in favor of Respondent Helwig on the civil conspiracy, tortuous interference with a contract, intentional interference with a business expectancy based on the statute of limitations.

Judge Jefferson denied the Respondent Helwig's Motions to Dismiss or to convert to Summary Judgment on the allegations of Malicious Prosecution and Abuse of Process based on the statute of limitation. (R. p.16)

Further, Judge Jefferson ruled that the allegation in the complaint give rise to competing inference as to notice to Appellant Mitchell of the nolle prosequi and the filing of the change of status form with the clerk of court. (R. pp. 13; 17-19,14; 1-3).

From the outset of the criminal proceedings, because Appellant was represented by counsel, the Solicitors office had informed and instructed Appellant, from the first that they would not talk to Appellant about the case. Therefore, Appellant must and did rely upon his criminal defense Attorney Phillip Middleton, from the beginning of the prosecution in 2001, to advise him and keep him apprised of the status of the case.

The Charleston County Solicitor's office, tells all defendant when they appear at the first roll call, if you have an attorney, don't call us, we're not going to talk to you, we're not going to tell you anything. Keep in touch with your defense attorney, he will advise you of the status of your case.

Assistant Solicitor Ed Knisely testified at his deposition that the Charleston County solicitor's office has probably 10,000 cases per month. There is no way for these 10,000 defendant's to contact the solicitor's office or the clerk of court's office each month to check on their case. If these 10,000 defendants were to contact or go to the clerks of courts office to check on their case it would over-whelm the clerk's office, plus all kinds of documents may disappear from the files. It would be chaos. It's not even practical to even suggest that. Further, until recently the Charleston County clerk of courts office was on a private computer system. Even an attorney had to go to the clerk's office if he wanted to view a clients file. The only way a defendant and the Appellant had to know what the status of his case was through his defense attorney.

True v. Monteith, 327 S.c. 116, 489 S.E. 2d 615 (-1997) A client should not be expected to investigate an attorney's loyalty every time the attorney provides the client with counsel. The client should be able to rely on attorney's advice and should be able to follow this advice without

fear the attorney is not acting in the client's best interest.

Appellant argues there is no evidence from which a jury could have reasonably concluded he knew or had reason to know.

Reasonable minds could differ on this issue. Byerly v. Connor, 307 S.C. 441,445,415 S.E.2d 796, 799 (1992) (stating summary judgment is appropriate when "plain, palpable, and indisputable facts exist on which reasonable minds cannot differ").

The determination of when the Appellant knew or should have known of any potential claims was consequently a jury issue. Santee Portland Cement Co. v. Daniel Int'l Corp, 299 S.C. 269, 274, 384 S.E. 2d 693,696 (1989); overruled on other grounds by Atlas Food Sys. & Servs., Inc. v. Crane Nat'l vendors Div. ofUnidynamics Corp., 319 S.C. 556,462 S.E. 2d 858 (1995) (finding that when all of the evidence goes to the reasonableness of a party's actions, the statute of limitation issue becomes one for the jury to decide). As such the Master improperly granter the Respondent Helwig's motion for summary judgment on the allegations of malicious prosecution and abuse of process, based on the expiration of the statute of limitation.

Moreover, the court was advised and so stated in its order dated April 8, 2011, that it is the policy and procedure of the Charleston County Solicitor's Office to notify defense counsel of the dismissal or nolle prosequi of a criminal case. (R. pp 15; 16-23)

The Appellent's file is void of evidence that the solicitor's office notified the Appellant's defense attorney. The Court ruled that there is an inference raised by the pleadings as to when the Appellant received notice that his charges were dismissed. (R.pp 15; 20-21)

The Court ruled that only the claims for civil conspiracy; tortious interference with a

contract ; tortious interference with a business expectancy must be dismissed as barred by the applicable statute of limitation and that the action on malicious prosecution and abuse of process continue.

Sometime later Respondent then filed a Motion for Summary Judgment before the Master In Equity based on the same set of facts and circumstances as already heard and ruled on by the Circuit Court, the Honorable Dedra L. Jefferson, on April 8, 2011.

A hearing was held by the Master on December 12, 2011. Respondent presented no new facts and no new evidence at this hearing, only the same as previously heard and ruled on by Judge Jefferson, on April 8, 2011.

On December 12, 2011, at a hearing before the Master, the Appellant filed and argued that the previous ruling on April 8, 2011, by Judge Jefferson was the law of the case, and that Rule 43(I) further prevented the Master from overruling Judge Jefferson prior ruling.

At the December 12, 2011, hearing the Master ordered that the Appellant and the Respondent file an additional brief by December 31, **2011**, stating why the court should find in their favor and why the nolle prosequi was terminated in favor of the plaintiff. (R pp. 144, 24-25, p. 145; 1-2, p. 146; 9-13, 21-24)

The Appellant, on December 30, 2011, did file the brief as instructed by the Master.

(R. pp. 160; 22-25, 161; 1) However, on December 29, 2011, the Master did sign an order granting summary judgment to the Respondent Helwig, without following its own instruction, without even reviewing, are given any consideration to the brief filed by the Appellant on December 30, 2011, as instructed by the Court. (R. pp. 146; 1- 13)

This Order was then filed on January 6, 2012 and notice of the filing of the order of summary judgment was received by the Appellant on January 14, 2012.

On January 19, 2012, Appellant filed a Motion for Reconsideration. A hearing was held on the Appellant's motion for reconsideration on April 23, 2012.

The Master-In Equity at the April 23, 2012, affirmed his previous order of Summary Judgment for Respondent Helwig, that was signed December 29, 2011, that the actions for malicious prosecution and abuse of process were barred by statute of limitation.

Appellant received written notice of the order May 3, 2012.

Appellant served Respondent with Notice of Appeal on May 10, 2012 and filed Notice of Appeal on May 14, 2012

STANDARD OF REVIEW

Summary judgment is appropriate when it is clear there is no genuine issue of material fact and the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. Baird v. Charleston County, 333 S.C. 519, 511 S.E.2d 69 (1999); Young v. South Carolina Dep't of Corrections, 333 S.C. 714, 511 S.E.2d 413 (Ct. App. 1999); Rule 56(c), SCRPC. See also Wells v. City of Lynchburg, 331 S.C. 296, 501 S.E.2d 746 (Ct. App. 1998) (trial court should grant motion for summary judgment when pleadings, depositions, answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with affidavits, if any, show there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and moving party is entitled to judgment as matter of law). In determining whether any triable issue of fact exists, as will preclude summary judgment, the evidence and all inferences which can be

reasonably drawn therefrom must be viewed in the light most favorable to the nonmoving party.

Strother v. Lexington County Recreation Comm'n, 332 S.e. 54, 504 S.E.2d 117 (1998); ~
v. Aycock, 325 S.e. 426, 480 S.E.2d 455 (Ct. App. 1997). If triable issues exist, those issues
must go to the jury. **Rothrock v. Copeland**, 305 S.e. 402, 409 S.E.2d 366 (1991); **Young**,
supra.

Summary judgment is not appropriate where further inquiry into the facts of the case is desirable
to clarify the application of the law. **Tupper v. Dorchester County**, 326 S.e. 318, 487 S.E.2d
187 (1997); **Moriarty v. Garden Sanctuary Church of God**, 334 S.C. 150, 511 S.E.2d 699
(Ct. App. 1999). All ambiguities, conclusions, and inferences arising from the evidence must be
construed most strongly against the moving party. **Young, supra**; **Truck South, Inc. v. Patel**,
332 S.C. 222, 503 S.E.2d 774 (Ct. App. 1998). Even when there is no dispute as to evidentiary
facts, but only as to the conclusions or inferences to be drawn from them, summary judgment
should be denied. **Young, supra**; **Moriarty, supra**. However, when plain, palpable, and
indisputable facts exist on which reasonable minds cannot differ, summary judgment should be
granted. **Young, supra**; ~, **supra**.

ARGUMENT

1. **WHETHER MASTER-IN-EQUITY ABUSED IDS DISCRETION BY SIGNING
AN ORDER GRANTING THE RESPONDENT HELWIG, SUMMARY
JUDGMENT ON DECEMBER 29, 2011, WHEN THE COURT HAD INSTRUCTED
BOTH APPELLANT MITCHELL, AND RESPONDENT HELWIG TO FILE**

ADDITIONAL BRIEFS ON OR BEFORE DECEMBER 31, 2011. APPELLANT MITCHELL, DID FILE AN ADDITIONAL BRIEF ON DECEMBER 30, 2011, AS INSTRUCTED BY THE COURT. THE MASTER-IN-EQUITY'S SIGNED ORDER OF DECEMBER 29, 2011, GRANTING SUMMARY JUDGMENT TO RESPONDENT HELWIG, WAS THEN FILED ON JANUARY 6, 2012.

At the hearing before the Master on December 12, 2011, (Rp 144-145; Transcript P.64, line 24, 25, P. 65 line 1 to 9), the Appellant and Respondent were instructed by the court to file an additional brief before December 31, 2011, (Rp 146; Transcript P. 66 line 1 to 13), as to why the court should rule in their favor and why the nolle prosequi was terminated in favor of the Appellant, are why the Respondent believed the nolle process was not terminated in favor of the Appellant.

The Appellant on December 30, 2011, did file the additional brief as instructed by the court to do.

However, on December 29, 2011, the master had already signed an order granting summary judgment to the Respondent Helwig. (Rp. 160, 21-25; p. 161, 1)

Therefore, the Master clearly abused his discretion, did not follow the court's own instruction, did not give the Appellant's review, credence, or consideration in his decision to grant the Respondent summary judgment.

2. WHETHER MASTER-IN-EQUITY ERRED IN OVER RULING THE PREVIOUS CIRCUIT COURT'S FINDINGS THAT THERE IS A GENUINE ISSUE OF A MATERIAL FACT IN DISPUTE, AND THE MASTER-IN-EQUITY FINDING THAT THERE IS NO GENUINE ISSUE OF A MATERIAL FACT IN DISPUTE, AS TO WHEN APPELLANT MITCHELL RECEIVED NOTICE OF THE DISMISSAL IN THE CRIMINAL CASE, THEREBY MAKING IT AN ISSUE FOR THE JURY, AND WHEN THE STATUTE OF LIMITATION BEGAN TO RUN.

BECAUSE THE PRIOR CIRCUIT COURT'S RULING DETERMINED THERE ARE FACTUAL MATTERS IN DISPUTE. THEREFORE, RENDERING SUMMARY JUDGMENT INAPPROPRIATE?

Here we are talking about notice in a criminal case, not a civil case. Here a person's life and liberty are at stake. The rules and procedures are different in a criminal case vs. a civil case.

The rules of notice is also different a criminal case. The Charleston County Solicitors office policy and procedure (R.p 15;Jefferson order P.10,line 16-23) to give actual notice to the criminal defendant and/or defendant's criminal defense attorney. A factual finding on the issue of whether (Appellant) the defendant in the criminal case or his defense attorney received notice of the dismissal and nolle prosequi, was made by Judge Jefferson. (R p.9; Judge Jefferson order P. 4, notes 1), states that the statutes of limitation issue sufficiently creates a question of fact on the cause of action for malicious prosecution and abuse of process.

Further,(R. p 13; Judge Jefferson ruled P. 8, line 19-24), that there is a competing inference on a question of material fact, and(R p.15 Judge Jefferson ruled P. 10, line 22-24), that there is an

inference raised by the pleadings as to when the Appellant received notice that his criminal charges were dismissed.

Therefore, the case against Respondent Helwig, for malicious prosecution and abuse of process was allowed to proceed.

In this case the solicitor's office failed to give any notice and the Appellant's file is void of any such notice. (R p. Judge Jefferson order P.10, line 20). In all criminal cases, the solicitor is required to give actual notice to the defendant and the defendant's defense attorney of all motions, filing, etc.

State v Johnson, 347 S.C.67, 552 S.E.2d 339 (Ct App. 2002) **James v State**, 372 S.C. 287, 641 S.E.2d 899 (2007).

Further, in the matter of the nolle prose of the criminal charges in this case, the mere filing of a "change of statues from with the clerk of court is not actual notice to the defendant or defendant's attorney in a criminal case.

The Respondent has offered no case on point in a criminal matter that the mere filing of a statues change form with the clerk of court in a criminal case being NOTICE to defendant or defendant council. (R. pp 87; 23-24)

The facts are that a criminal defendant, and the Appellant in this case, in Charleston County would have no common knowledge of the dismissal or nolle prosequi procedures of the Charleston County Solicitator's Office and no circumstances exist that would give a criminal defendant pr the Appellant, cause to inquire about the filing of a change of statues form with the Clerk of Court without actual notice to the defendant are the defendants attorney.(R. pp. 121; 1-25, 122; 1-4)

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