THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM CHARLESTON COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

Mikell R. Scarborough, Master-In-Equity

Case No. 2010-CP-10-5532
Tracking Number 2012-211963

William C. Mitchell,

Appellant,

v.

James T. Helwig,

Respondent.

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

Andrew E. Haselden
James P. Sullivan
Howser, Newman & Besley, LLC
215 East Bay Street, Suite 303
Charleston, South Carolina 29401
843.216.6940
Attorneys for Respondent

RECEIVED

APR 22 2013

SC Court of Appeals

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

- (1) institution or continuation of original judicial proceedings, either civil or criminal;
- (2) by, or at the instance of, the defendants;
- (3) termination of such proceedings in plaintiff’s favor;
- (4) malice in instituting the proceedings;
- (5) lack of probable cause; and
- (6) resulting injury or damage.

Gaar v. North Myrtle Beach Realty Co., 287 S.C. 525, 339 S.E.2d 887 (Ct. App. 1986).

While not addressed directly by a South Carolina appellate court, ostensibly, the statute of limitations begins to run on a malicious prosecution claim when the complained of proceeding terminates in a plaintiff’s favor. *See Brooks v. City of Winston-Salem*, 85

F.3d 178, 183 (4th Cir. 1996) (claim for malicious prosecution does “not accrue until a favorable termination is obtained”).

According to South Carolina law, filings with a clerk of court, particularly in cases where Appellant is a party, constitute constructive notice. *Berry v. McLeod*, 328 S.C. 435, 445, 492 S.E.2d 794, 800 (Ct. App. 1997) (holding the statute of limitations began to run, at the latest, when the bond documents were publicly filed with the clerk of court, at which time, The plaintiff residents had constructive notice). In similar cases involving matters of public record, South Carolina courts have evinced a willingness to find constructive notice for purposes of barring claims under an applicable statute of limitations. *Fuller-Ahrens Partnership v. South Carolina Dept. of Highways and Public Transp.*, 311 S.C. 177, 181–82, 427 S.E.2d 920, 922–23 (1993). As discussed in the *Fuller-Ahrens* decision, constructive notice is an integral part of our judicial system.

Although not binding in South Carolina, a Texas state court issued an instructive opinion regarding the issue of constructive notice in a malicious prosecution case. In *Lang v. City of Nacogdoches*, 942 S.W.2d 752 (Tex. Ct. App. 1997), at the behest of the defendant, the plaintiff was arrested on February 4, 1990, for criminal trespass. 942 S.W.2d at 756. However, the charges were subsequently dropped on May 21, 1990. *Id.* Although the plaintiff had retained a criminal attorney and maintained frequent contact with his legal representation, the plaintiff failed to discover the criminal charges had been dropped until December 5, 1991. *Id.* After discovering the charges had been dropped, the plaintiff filed a complaint on February 3, 1992, against the defendant, alleging a claim for malicious prosecution. *Id.* Respondent filed a motion for summary judgment, arguing that the applicable one year statute of limitations barred the plaintiff’s malicious prosecution

claim. *Id.* at 756–57.

After stating the general rule that the applicable statute of limitations begins to run when the alleged malicious prosecution terminates in the plaintiff's favor, the *Lang* court addressed the plaintiff's argument that under the "discovery rule," the limitations period began on December 5, 1991, when the plaintiff's attorney informed him the criminal case had been dismissed. *Id.* at 758. Specifically, the plaintiff argued that he "exercised reasonable diligence to discover the status of the charges by repeatedly checking with [his] attorney and that [he] believed the charges were still pending during that time." *Id.*

Unconvinced by the argument, the *Lang* court found that "matters disclosed in public records filed in the county courthouse are not such circumstances where it is difficult for the injured party to learn of the [alleged injury]." *Id.* In general, the *Lang* court found that "a person is charged with constructive notice of the actual knowledge that could have been acquired by examining public records." *Id.* The *Lang* court further "concluded that interested parties are charged with constructive notice of the contents of documents recorded in the public records of the county." *Id.* Because the existence of and date of the dismissal were undisputed, the *Lang* court ruled that the plaintiff's malicious prosecution was barred by the applicable statute of limitations. *Id.*

After reviewing the above case law, the Master-in-Equity found that "South Carolina courts apply the constructive notice doctrine in cases where the subject notice is filed with the Clerk of Court and thus publicly available to all interested parties." (Order at 7, Jan. 6, 2012; R. p. 24). Moreover, the Master-in-Equity found persuasive the *Lang* decision and adopted its reasoning. (*Id.*)

In the instant case, neither party disputes that notice of the dismissal of the underlying criminal actions filed against Appellant were filed with the Clerk of Court on December 27, 2006. (*Id.* at 8. R. p. 25). Respondent maintains the filing of the dismissals in the public records, as a matter of law, placed Appellant on notice as of December 27, 2006. (*Id.*) For this reason, the Master-in-Equity ruled as a matter of law that the malicious prosecution cause of action asserted by the Complaint was time-barred pursuant to South Carolina Code of Laws Section 15-3-530. (*Id.*)

As discussed above, Judge Jefferson reviewed Respondent's Rule 12(b)(6) Motion to Dismiss under the applicable standard of review before denying Respondent's motion as to Appellant's malicious prosecution cause of action. (Order at 9–10, Apr. 8, 2010; R. pp. 14–15). Importantly, because Judge Jefferson's review was limited to the allegations of Appellant's Complaint, Judge Jefferson declined to review and rule upon the issue of constructive notice. (*See id.*) Judge Scarborough, during the December 12, 2011 hearing, carefully explained that his decision was governed by a different standard of review than Judge Jefferson's review of Respondent's Motion to Dismiss under Rule 12(b)(6). (Hr'g Tr. 3–5, Dec. 12, 2011; R. pp. 82–84). Governed by a different standard of review, Judge Scarborough engaged in a thorough review of the issue of constructive notice and applied his analysis to the fully developed record before the Court. (Order at 6–8, Jan. 6, 2012; R. pp. 23–25). During the April 23, 2012 hearing on Appellant's Rule 59(e) Motion for Reconsideration, Judge Scarborough again carefully explained the different standards applied by courts, different standards that allow a court to issue an order granting a party summary judgment although a court had previously denied the

same party's Rule 12(b)(6) motion to dismiss. (Hr'g Tr. 8–12, 16, Apr. 23, 2012; R. pp. 156–60, 164).

In essence, Judge Scarborough reviewed the issue of constructive notice unconstrained by Judge Jefferson's rulings on an undeveloped record. When viewing a fully developed record and all reasonable inferences that could be drawn from such evidence in the light most favorable to Appellant, Judge Scarborough correctly determined Appellant had failed to raise a question of fact regarding the untimely filing of the Complaint's malicious prosecution cause of action. Therefore, this Court should affirm Judge Scarborough's Order, granting Respondent's motion for summary judgment as to Appellant's malicious prosecution cause of action.

B. Master-In-Equity Properly Granted Respondent Summary Judgment on Appellant's Abuse of Process Claim After the Circuit Court Partially Denied Appellant's Motion to Dismiss.

Under South Carolina law, “[t]o successfully maintain an abuse of process claim, the plaintiff must show an ulterior purpose and a willful act in the use of the process that is not proper in the regular conduct of the proceeding.” *Swicegood v. Lott*, 379 S.C. 346, 351–52, 665 S.E.2d 211, 213 (Ct. App. 2008). As opposed to malicious prosecution, the right to bring an abuse of process claim accrues when process is first used for an improper purpose, rather than when the proceedings terminate in favor of the plaintiff. *See Yoost v. Zalcborg*, 925 N.E.2d 763, 771 (2010).

According to South Carolina law, “[t]he abuse of process tort provides a remedy for one damaged by another's perversion of a legal procedure for a purpose not intended by the procedure.” *Food Lion, Inc. v. United Food Commercial Workers Int'l Union*, 351 S.C. 65, 69, 567 S.E.2d 251, 253 (Ct. App. 2002). Furthermore, “[a]n ulterior purpose

exists if the process is used to gain an objective not legitimate in the use of the process.” *First Union Mortgage Corp. v. Thomas*, 317 S.C. 63, 74, 451 S.E.2d 907, 914 (Ct. App. 1994). Finally, “[t]he improper purpose usually takes the form of coercion to obtain a collateral advantage, not properly involved in the proceeding itself.” *Hainer v. Am. Med. Int’l, Inc.*, 328 S.C. 128, 136, 492 S.E.2d 103, 107 (1997).

The allegations of the Complaint and Appellant’s deposition testimony confirm Appellant knew or should have known he might have a claim for abuse of process, at the latest, by December 12, 2001. In the Complaint, Appellant alleges that Respondent Helwig “used the criminal justice process and held [Appellant] hostage to the system to force [Appellant] to refund payments made on contracts with the Defendant[s], as a mean[s] of extortion.” (Compl. ¶ 54; R. p. 48). On December 12, 2001, “[Appellant] knew, because [Appellant] had not given in to the threats, intimidations and complied with the demands of the Defendant’s to refund the Defendants the payments which the Defendants had made on the contracts with [Appellant,] [t]he [Appellant] was arrested on a warrant for Breach of Trust and Obtaining Money Under False Pretenses.” (*Id.* ¶ 40; R. p. 42). According to the Appellant’s own allegations, Appellant at the time of his arrest in December 2001 believed Respondent Helwig pursued the criminal action against him for the alleged improper purpose of extorting money from Appellant.

In his deposition testimony, Appellant confirmed he believed at the time of his arrest that Respondent Helwig was pursuing charges against Appellant to gain an objective not legitimate in the use of the process:

Q Okay. When you were arrested and you -- when were you arrested on the charges?

A 2001, I believe it was.

Q Late 2001, I believe. Correct?

- A It seemed like it was in December. I'm not sure.
- Q All right. When you were arrested, why did you think Mr. Helwig had pressed charges against you?
- A Because he was pissed off I wouldn't give him his money back that I didn't owe and he wanted to prosecute me.
- Q Okay. And you knew that as of -- at the time you were being arrested?
- A That was my opinion, yes, sir.
- Q Okay. I have your -- here it is. I'm looking at your Complaint, paragraph 54. All right. It's the abuse of process allegation, and in it - - and I'll just read it for you, and you can check if you want to: The . . . defendants negligently, willfully, with callous and reckless indifference used the criminal justice process and held [Appellant] hostage to the system to force [Appellant] to refund payments made on contracts with the defendants as a means of extortion. Okay?
- A That's what I just said.
- Q And that was your belief at the time that you were arrested?
- A I don't know, that's what it states when this was filed.
- Q Okay. Well, it's your allegation.
- A There could have been ten beliefs at that time in 2001. You're asking me what this legal document states, that's what it states, yes, sir, as of the date that it's dated.
- Q Okay. It's your allegation -- I think it's fair for me to assume that this is an opinion you had at the time you were being arrested.
- A It could have been an opinion I had in 2001, I'm not sure.
- Q Okay. You did just say that at the time you were arrested you believed that Mr. Helwig was pissed off and that you owed him money and that's why he had you arrested.
- A And because I wouldn't refund it, he wanted to use the criminal process as a collection agency.
- Q In 2001.
- A Yes, sir.

(Mitchell Dep. 165:24–168:1; R. p. 165). Therefore, as alleged on the face of the Complaint and as admitted during his deposition, Appellant believed as of December 12, 2001, that Respondent Helwig had instituted process against him for an improper purpose. As noted above, Appellant failed to file the Complaint until July 9, 2010.

Based on the above, Judge Scarborough found that when viewing the record in a light most favorable to Appellant, no question of fact exists as to Appellant's failure to file the abuse of process claim against Respondent Helwig within the time period set

forth in South Carolina Code of Laws Section 15-3-530. (Order at 11, Jan. 6, 2012; R. p. 28).

As discussed at length above, Judge Scarborough reviewed Respondent's Motion for Summary Judgment unconstrained by Judge Jefferson's findings on an undeveloped record. When viewing a fully developed record and all reasonable inferences that could be drawn from such evidence in the light most favorable to Appellant, Judge Scarborough correctly determined Appellant had failed to raise a question of fact regarding the untimely filing of the Complaint's abuse of process cause of action. Therefore, this Court should affirm Judge Scarborough's Order, granting Respondent's motion for summary judgment as to Appellant's abuse of process cause of action.

II. BECAUSE THE ORDER GRANTING RESPONDENT'S SUMMARY JUDGMENT WAS FILED ON JANUARY 6, 2012, THE MASTER-IN-EQUITY PROPERLY GRANTED SUMMARY JUDGMENT IN FAVOR OF RESPONDENT WHEN APPELLANT SUBMITTED A PROPOSED ORDER DENYING RESPONDENT'S SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON DECEMBER 30, 2011.

According to South Carolina law, "[a]n abuse of discretion occurs when the trial court's order is controlled by an error of law or when there is no evidentiary support for the trial court's factual conclusions." *Sundown Operating Co. v. Intedge Indus., Inc.*, 383 S.C. 601, 681 S.E.2d 885 (2009). Additionally, South Carolina courts have determined that "to warrant reversal[,] a party must demonstrate the alleged procedural failure caused him prejudice." *See Chastain v. Hiltabidle*, 381 S.C. 508, 519, 673 S.E.2d 826, 831 (Ct. App. 2009).

On December 12, 2011, the Master-in-Equity heard arguments on Respondent Helwig's Motion for Summary Judgment. On January 6, 2012, the Order Granting Respondent Helwig's Motion for Summary was filed with the Clerk of Court, dismissing

the remaining causes of action asserted in Appellant's Complaint. (Order, Jan. 6, 2012; R. pp. 18–29). The Order is dated December 29, 2011. (*Id.*)

Appellant alleges he submitted a proposed order denying Respondent's Motion for Summary Judgment on December 30, 2011. (Appellant's Initial Br. at 13–14.) Appellant states the Master-in-Equity instructed both parties to submit proposed orders before December 31, 2011. (*Id.* at 13.) Therefore, Appellant argues, by signing the Order prior to receiving Appellant's proposed order, the Master-in-Equity "clearly abused his discretion." (*Id.* at 14.)

Assuming arguendo that Appellant submitted a proposed order on December 30, 2011, no South Carolina reported decisions indicate a court abuses its discretion by simply signing an order prior to the receipt of proposed orders from all parties. South Carolina law clearly states that an abuse of discretion review deals solely errors of law or unfounded factual conclusions. The arguments offered by Appellant deal with neither. Furthermore, to the extent Appellant's contentions involve an alleged procedural error on behalf of the Master-in-Equity, any such error would be harmless given the record before this Court clearly supports affirming summary judgment in favor of Respondent.

III. BECAUSE THE LAW OF THE CASE DOCTRINE DOES NOT APPLY TO JUDICIAL DECISIONS BASED ON DIFFERENT STANDARDS OF REVIEW FOR MOTIONS TO DISMISS AND FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT, THE MASTER-IN-EQUITY PROPERLY GRANTED SUMMARY JUDGMENT IN FAVOR OF RESPONDENT.

Under the law of the case doctrine, "a party is precluded from relitigating, after an appeal, matters that were either not raised on appeal, but should have been, or raised on appeal, but expressly rejected by the appellate court." *Judy v. Martin*, 381 S.C. 455, 458–59, 674 S.E.2d 151, 153 (2009).

The record before this Court does not involve the relitigation of unappealed matters. The central argument raised by Appellant involves his contention that the Master-in-Equity committed reversible error by granting summary judgment to Respondent, finding the Appellant's malicious prosecution and abuse of process claims were barred by the applicable statute limitation, given the denial of Respondent's Rule 12(b)(6) Motion to Dismiss. (*See* Appellant's Initial Br. at 10–13, 14–17.) Such a contention fails to fall within the law of the case doctrine because the issue is the exact issue presently being appealed. Raising an issue during two different stages of pre-trial dispositive motions is not a situation encompassed by the law of the case doctrine. Therefore, Appellant's reliance on the doctrine is misplaced.

IV. BECAUSE ADDITIONAL GROUNDS APPEAR IN THE RECORD WARRANTING SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON THE MERITS, THE COURT OF APPEALS SHOULD AFFIRM THE GRANTING OF SUMMARY JUDGMENT TO THE RESPONDENT.

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